ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 31, 2015
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Bill W el echowski
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 56
"An Act establishing Alaska Firefighters' Day."

- MOVED SCS HB 56( STA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 24

"An Act relating to the applicability of the Legislative Ethics
Act to legislative interns, legislative volunteers, consultants,
i ndependent contractors, sole proprietorships, and other |egal
entities."

- MOVED SB 24 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 56

SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA FI REFI GHTERS DAY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN, CLAMAN

01/ 21/ 15 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 15 (H STA

02/ 24/ 15 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 24/ 15 (H Moved HB 56 Qut of Committee

02/ 24/ 15 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 25/ 15 (H) STA RPT 6DP

02/ 25/ 15 (H) DP: TALERI CO, STUTES, LYNN, KREI SS-
TOWKI NS, GRUENBERG KELLER

03/ 02/ 15 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2015



03/ 02/ 15 (H) VERSI ON: HB 56

03/ 04/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 15 (S) STA

03/ 31/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 24

SHORT TITLE: LEG S. ETHI CS ACT: CONTRACTORS, | NTERNS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) GARDNER

01/ 21/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 05/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 05/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

03/ 12/ 15 (S) STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 12/ 15 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 12/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 31/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 56.

JEFF TUCKER, Fire Chief

Kenai Fire Departnent

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HB 56.

MARK HALL, Fire Chief

Hi | corp Al aska, LLC

Al aska-North Sl ope

Prudhoe Bay, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HB 56.

KELLY NI COLELLO, Al aska State Fire Marshal and Director
Division of Fire and Life Safety

Al aska Departnent of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HB 56.

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 24.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 31,

2015



THOVAS PRESLEY, Staff

Senator Berta Gardner

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew for SB 24.

JOYCE ANDERSQON, Contractor

Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regarding SB 24.

JERRY ANDERSON, Conmmittee Admi nistrator

Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Al aska State Legislature

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regardi ng SB 24.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 21 AM

CHAIR BILL STO.TZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Huggins, MQGire, and Chair
Stoltze.

HB 56- ALASKA FI REFI GHTERS' DAY

9:01:47 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of HB 56.

9:02: 01 AM
REPRESENTATIVE BOB LYNN, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau,
Al aska, provided a sponsor statenment as foll ows:

There's a special group of people who help us survive.
At the federal level, of course, it's American's
mlitary. At the state and local levels it's first
responders and that includes our Alaska firefighters.
When you're trying to escape a fire, firefighters run
into burning buildings to help us escape. Wen you
suffer a heart attack or sone other nedical emergency,
it's our firefighters who rush into our hone to save
our lives. Wien you are trapped in a car from sone
horrible accident, it's firefighters who rush to the
scene to rescue us wth Jaws of Life. Unless we

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2015



survive, all of the other issues and challenges and
opportunities are noot. Alaska' s firefighters deserve
their own special day of recognition and | urge you to

pass this bill out of commttee. This good bill has

becone a better bill when the Chairman included

volunteer firefighters. | urge you to pass the bill.
9:03: 36 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that the <conmttee has a conmmttee
substitute (CS) that Representative Lynn referenced. He pointed
out that the CS does not change any substance of the bill. He
added that the CS has a Findings Section that wll not be
included in the statutes, but does reflect the contribution of a
| arge nunber of fol ks.

SENATOR MCGUI RE noved to adopt the Senate State Affairs version
for HB 56, [29-LS0241\W as the working docunent.

CHAI R STOLTZE objected and expl ained that he worked closely with
the bill sponsor with the desire to recognize the |arge nunber
of people that are not paid professionals.

9: 04: 23 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that Chairman Stoltze nmade a good
bill much better

CHAI R STOLTZE detailed that the bill's Findings Section is only
reflected in the legislative record that the volunteers wll be
recogni zed. He pointed out that service includes non-police,
public safety, dispatchers, wild firefighters and so forth

9: 05: 08 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there were any other objections. He
announced that the CS is before the commttee.

9: 05: 29 AM

JEFF TUCKER, Fire Chief, Kenai Fire Departnent, Kenai, Al aska,
revealed that he is also the 2nd Vice President for the Al aska
Fire Chiefs Association. He said HB 56 recognizes the
contributions of firefighters across the state, both career and
volunteer firefighters. He pointed out that the bill gives the
state a date to pause, reflect, and celebrate the services that
the men and wonen firefighters provide for their conmunities. He
said the Alaska Fire Chiefs Association supports and encourages
t he adoption of HB 56.

9:06: 24 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2015



MARK HALL, Fire Chief, Hilcorp Alaska, LLC, Al aska-North Sl ope,
Prudhoe Bay, Alaska, said HB 56 is a great thing for all of the

fire-people in the fire-service, including professionals that
volunteers or paid that put their lives on the I|ine. He
concurred with Chief Tucker that HB 56 will establish a great

day for people to just think about what the fire-service does
for their community and what the comunity does for the service
t 0o.

9:07:45 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that firefighting personnel includes
both nen and wonen. He noted that the fire chief at his |oca
fire departnment is a wonman

MR. HALL agreed with Chair Stoltze.

9:08: 02 AM

KELLY N COLELLO, Alaska State Fire Mrshal, Director, D vision
of Fire and Life Safety, Al aska Departnent of Public Safety,
Anchor age, Al aska, pointed out that there are approxi mately 1500
firefighters across the state made up of career, nunicipal,
borough, wildland, and airport firefighters. He added that there
are approximtely 6000 volunteer nunicipal, borough, village,
and wildland firefighters that are all considered professionals
for serving conmunities with their heart, soul, pocketbooks, and
sonetimes their lives. He stated that the vast mgjority of
firefighters are volunteers who have other fulltine careers. He
said all firefighters dedicate many extra hours to learn, train,
equi p, and respond to | ocal energency situations.

He stated that recognition of Alaska Firefighter Day is a great
way to denonstrate that firefighters' personal involvenent neans
nore than what happens locally. He said that the service
firefighters perform has a direct inpact on the quality of life
of those around them and s recognized as a positive
contribution to Alaska as a whole. He summarized that the
recognition of Alaska Firefighter Day during Fire Prevention
Wek is appropriate when renenbrance is given to those
firefighters who have lost their lives in the perfornmance of
their duties.

9:10: 31 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE stated that she had one anendnent for the
commttee to consider

9:11: 02 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE asked if there was any other public testinony. He
announced that public testinony was cl osed.

SENATOR MCGUI RE noted that she serves on the board for the
Al aska Police and Fire Chaplains' Mnistries. She pointed out
that chaplains are an amazing part of the fire service. She said
chapl ains are people that go on the frontlines and help confort
famlies that | ost their | oved ones.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE noved and asked for wunani nbus consent that on
line 13, after "search and rescue personnel"™ put a comma and add
"chapl ai ns. "

CHAIR STOLTZE asked Senator MQ@uire to repeat her conceptual
anendnent .

SENATOR MCGUI RE restated that on page 1, line 13, after "search
and rescue personnel” insert a comma and add "chaplains, and
countl ess others beyond the field."

9:12: 18 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE found no objection and announced that [Amendnent
1] is adopted.

He said he would like to nmake a personal dedication to two
individuals that put three to four decades in their respective
fire departnents near the area where he lives. He cited Charles
Von Gunten from the Butte Volunteer Fire Departnent and diff
G lnore fromthe Chugi ak Vol unteer Fire Department.

9:13:16 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to report the Senate CS for HB 56, version
\'W as anmended, be noved from commttee with individual comrents
and zero fiscal note.

9:13: 29 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that hearing no objection SCS HB 56( STA)
is reported from Senate State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

9:13:48 AM
At ease

SB 24-LEA S. ETH CS ACT: CONTRACTORS, | NTERNS

9:15: 15 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of SB 24.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2015



9:15:28 AM
SENATOR BERTA GARDNER, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,

noted that responses wll be provided for issues that were
rai sed when the bill was previously heard in the conmttee.
9:15:42 AM

THOMAS PRESLEY, Staff, Senator Berta Gardner, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, explained that two questions cane
up during the last commttee neeting: which contracts would be
effected by the bill and how the legislation made it through the
Ethics Conmittee. He noted that docunments were provided to the
committee that listed contractors and contracts that would be
effected by the bill. He specified that the bill was unani nously
passed by the Ethics Commttee based upon changes recommended by
Joyce Anderson, Daniel Wayne, and Chair Gary Turner.

9:18: 06 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked that the record show that Jerry Anderson and
Joyce Anderson have no affiliation with one another.

9:18: 37 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS opined that ethics cannot be legislated. He
stated that people are what they are. He asked what consultants
will need to do in order to conply.

MR. PRESLEY replied that a handout was provided to the comittee
at the previous neeting that listed parts of the Ethics Code
that applies to legislators. He specified that prohibitions
relate to conflicts of interest, restrictions on fund raising,
restrictions on enployee candi dacies, and protection on whistle
bl owers. He <concurred with Senator Huggins that |egislating
ethics is difficult.

9:20: 14 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS replied that he understood the prohibitions. He
asked if consultants would have to be counseled for two hours or
woul d a docunent have to be signed that attests to their reading
of the information.

MR. PRESLEY replied that Joyce Anderson and Jerry Anderson wl |
address Senat or Huggi ns' question. He noted that there was sone
di scussion about creating a 30 mnute online video and a form
that provides information for consultants.

9:21: 06 AM

JOYCE ANDERSON, Contractor, Select Conmittee on Legislative
Et hics, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska, noted that she

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2015



was the fornmer admnistrator to the Ethics Conmttee. She
replied that the training requirement is not going to be
required for independent contractors and consultants. She
expl ained that the suggestion was the Ethics Ofice put out a
short video for a contractor or consultant to review as an
option and to sign a form that they are aware of the
requi renents. She said there would not be any |engthy training,
approximate tinme would be 20 m nutes.

9:22:19 AM

JERRY ANDERSON, Conmittee Admnistrator, Select Commttee on
Legislative Ethics, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
agreed that Ms. Anderson's interpretation is the interpretation
that the Ethics Commttee adopt ed.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked why the Legislature needs to address
ethics applicability changes through a bill. He inquired if the
Ethics Conmttee has the authority to make the changes on their
own.

M5. ANDERSON replied as foll ows:

The Ethics Commttee through the Legislative Legal
Ofice has determned that the commttee does not have
the authority to make this type of change considering
that independent contractors and consultants are
listed under the definition of |egislative enployee
and so when you are listed as a legislative enployee
you are required to conmply wth all of t he
requirenments of the Legislative Ethics Act. So the
coommittee felt that, and through the |egal departnent,
that they did not have the authority to nake the
change wi t hout having sonme sort of |egislation passed.

9:23: 46 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS replied that he understood. He pointed out that
Ms. Anderson used the term"optional" regarding training.

MS. ANDERSON answered that the training would be optional. She
specified that the requirenments that the independent contractors
and consultants would have to follow are stipulated in SB 24.
She said the Ethics Conmttee felt that training should be
optional and not mandatory, but that the changes should be nmade
to only require particular parts of the Legislative Ethics Act.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if legislators will get billed $500 per hour
by their consultants to take their conpliance course.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2015



SENATOR GARDNER replied that potentially legislators could be
billed, depending on the terns of their contract. She pointed
out that consultants are subject to all parts of the Legislative
Et hics Act and it does not nmake sense in all cases.

SENATOR STOLTZE asked if there was anyone else from the public,
state agencies, or contractors that would like to testify. He
noted that the next commttee of referral is the Judiciary
Conmittee.

9:25:27 AM
SENATOR MCGQU RE noved to report SB 24 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendati ons and attached fiscal notes.

9:25:40 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE announced that he wll talk to the Senate
Presi dent about adding a Finance Conmittee referral due to the
potential for extra costs for legislative contracts. He asked if
there were any objections to noving the bill out of commttee.

SENATOR HUGE NS commented that his hope is that the Legislature
hires people that have a track record and the hiring is
reflective of what the commttee addressed in the |egislation.
He opined that the bill was the equivalent to "pole vaulting
over nouse dung."

9:26: 34 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that there being no objection, SB 24 is
reported fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

9:26: 54 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 9:26 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- March 31, 2015



